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a message from the meC
FOREWORD BY QEDANI MAHLANGU MEC ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT OF THE GAUTENG 

FILM COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT 2011-2011

The film and TV industry in Gauteng continues to have 

an important role to play in enhancing the Province’s 

competitiveness and in driving job creation and economic 

growth. 

Cognisance must be taken, however, of the fiscally tight and 

dynamic environment within which the industry now has to 

operate within as well as rising regional and international 

competition. 

Further, the established industry has been the primary 

beneficiary in the past, with not enough focused support 

for, and development of, a new generation of historically 

disadvantaged filmmakers and emphasis on both local 

content and local audience development.  

This must change in order to both create jobs and a broader 

market for this sector. As such, both private and public 

investment is required to stimulate productivity-enhancing 

activities and to ensure Gauteng’s development as Africa’s 

principal production centre moving forward.

Ms Qedani Dorothy Mahlangu

Member of the Executive Council: Economic Development 
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Vision

Making Gauteng an innovative world-class hub for the film and 

television industry.

Mission

To cultivate, facilitate and enhance an environment that allows the 

film and television industry to play a meaningful role in the socio-

economic development of Gauteng.

Our values

Our values incorporate the following Batho Pele principles:

• Respect

• Leadership

• Responsibility

• Responsiveness

• Progressive and innovative

• Passion, excellence and commitment

• People development and empowerment

• Efficiency, accountability and transparency

Strategic objectives

• To deliver professional film commission services

•  To increase the number of participants involved in the 

development, production and distribution of independently 

made films in order to realise the sector’s full job preservation 

and creation potential

• To develop local content markets

•  To develop and maintain effective business processes (in respect 

of legal services, human resource management, financial 

management and information and technology services) in order 

to ensure the effective functioning of the organisation

Vision, mission, values 
and mandate
the gauteng film Commission (gfC) is an agency of the gauteng Provincial government 
tasked with the development and promotion of the audio-visual industries in gauteng. 
flowing from this mandate, the gfC’s core business is to facilitate and enhance the 
contribution of the industry to the economic growth of the Province.
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the gfC is taking a leadership role in exploring and facilitating 

alternative business models that will make the industry resilient in 

these challenging times. the production process and distribution 

phases of the production value chain are the areas of significant 

employment potential and the gfC will continue to work tirelessly 

to realise this growth potential for the Province.

response to the 20 south african feature films released nationally in 

2010 clearly demonstrates that local audiences are willing to support 

local content and are enjoying the greater variety of locally produced 

films.  this augurs well for the new generation of film-makers and for 

the long-term viability of the sector.

on behalf of the Board and management of the gfC, i would like to 

reassert our commitment to good governance. as always, i must 

extend a heartfelt thanks to my fellow board members for their 

invaluable contributions throughout the year. the dedication of the 

Ceo, terry tselane, and his team of committed professionals at the 

gfC is also to be commended.  

i wish to thank the members of the audit Committee for their 

ongoing contributions to the organisation. to the staff of the  

auditor-general, we are particularly grateful for their professionalism 

and assistance.

Nkenke Kekana
Chairperson

in our annual report last year we emphasised the need for the 

gauteng film Commission to achieve more with less, due both to 

the constrained fiscal environment and less buoyant state of the 

audio-visual industry locally, and to drive job creation as a contributor 

to economic growth in the Province.

i am pleased to report that this commitment has been seriously 

undertaken by the Commission, with a number of innovative 

programmes being initiated and driven that look to develop the 

local film industry and stimulate both the sector and job 

opportunities. 

a message from the Chairperson
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the Board

Terry Tselane
Chief Executive Officer
gauteng film Commission

Seipati Bulane-Hopa
Board member
fePaCi

Johann Marnitz
Board member
JP marnitz and Co

Zandile Nzalo
Board member
Zanenza Communications

Nkenke Kekana
Chairperson
gauteng film Commission
mowana investments
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a message from the 
Chief executive officer

the gfC spent the better part of the past year re-aligning its 

strategies and programmes, in order to actively support employment 

creation in the audio-visual sector. although over the past decade 

the local industry has seen strong growth in revenue, this did not 

lead to the creation of employment in the industry.  

While the gfC was highly successful in its outward focused strategy, 

attracting international productions and effectively promoting 

gauteng as an excellent destination of choice, this tended to largely 

benefit the established industry only. accordingly, the refocused  

gfC has up-scaled its support programmes in order to encourage 

and develop local independent film makers as well as to grow job 

opportunities in the medium to long term. in this financial year the 

gfC supported 15 feature films, tV series and documentaries, 

resulting in 491 project-based contract jobs. 

through audience development programmes we were able to 

reach 4,978 people. 

our intention is to grow these programmes in the next financial 

year and to ensure that we reach more people, particularly in the 

areas that do not have cinemas.

our highlight for the 2010/11 financial year was the gfC’s support 

for the first african women festival to take place in south africa, 

where 25 films by 23 talented women filmmakers from 15 african 

countries were screened and work-shopped in Johannesburg. We 

will continue to work with women organisations in order to increase 

the numbers of women in the film industry.   

the gfC through its logistical services continued to provide 

excellent support to the industry. We continued to implement the 

Permit framework as well as the ‘film friendly gauteng’ initiative, to 

ensure the long-term competitiveness of the Province.  it is rewarding 

to note that our efforts are recognised by the industry as is reflected  

in a customer satisfaction survey which reported a 95% satisfactory 

experience of working with the gfC. 

in the longer term and to ensure it more than adequately fulfil its 

mandate, the Commission requires additional sources of funding to 

effectively drive the industry to the highest level in the country in 

terms of job creation and skills transfer.

Terry Tselane
Chief Executive Officer
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Inside the Johannesburg Roads Agency building in central 
Johannesburg. Photographer Alan Rheeder
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Gauteng Film Commission organogram
Terry Tselane   Chief executive officer
Faith Ramoupi   Personal assistant to the Ceo
Siyabonga Mngoma     stakeholder relationship manager
Tumi Moncho   Legal secretary
Elliot Maluleke   Chief financial officer
Lazarus Makube finance and Payroll manager 
Refilwe Nnani   finance officer 
Latoya Mokotto    Human resources manager 

(resigned 31 may 2010)
Palai Segone  Human resources officer
Patricia Mkhaliphi   office assistant
Rochelle Roscoe  receptionist

organogram
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Chief 
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Management 

The Chief Executive Officer is appointed by the MEC for 

Economic Development in consultation with the Board and is 

held accountable to this office.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Gauteng Film Commission 

serves as its principal agent in ensuring proper oversight  

in matters relating to, among others, the integrity of 

management, the independence of GFC auditors and the 

adequacy of disclosures to the public.

Members of the Audit Committee

Johan van der Walt CA (SA) – Chairperson

Johann Marnitz – Member

Ester Makau – Member

Peterson Mothudi CA (SA) – Member

Risk management

The Gauteng Film Commission Board is responsible for 

identifying and addressing the management of all operational 

and financial risks.

The Commission maintains systems and structures of internal 

control that are designed to provide transparency and 

accountability as well as to ensure that the organisation 

operates to the highest standards applicable.

The appointment of a legal secretary has enabled the 

Commission to place more emphasis on strategic matters such 

as corporate governance and migration from a Section 21 to a 

public entity.

In addition, to monitor internal control more closely and 

regularly, the Commission appointed an internal auditor.

Isaac Mokgaphane   it manager
Bubele Ngxola  it officer
Thabiso Masudubele   senior manager: industry support 

and Development
Desmond Mthembu Project manager: industry support 
 and Development
Kgomotso Tabane   audience Development officer
Nthabeleng Phora   unit Coordinator
Jacques Stoltz  senior manager:  marketing (resigned July 2010)
Tumi Ntshingila  Communications manager
Puisano Phatoli   marketing manager
Seitiso Mogoshane   information officer
Sebastian Ndayi   research manager
Andile Milanzi   marketing intern

Office 
Assistant

Receptionist
HR 

Officer

Human 
Resources 
Manager

management
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Railway tracks outside of Johannesburg
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the south african audio-visual industry encompasses a range of 
creative production activities including film, tV and documentary 
productions, commercials, stills photography and multimedia.

gauteng accounts for the bulk of tV production in south africa 
and enjoys a large slice of the commercial production sector with 
an estimated 39% of all commercials filmed in south africa, shot in 
gauteng. over the past decade, gauteng has also become the 
main focal point for the production of local feature films and 
documentaries with local audiences showing strong support for 
indigenous films. 

While the main stream of the production industry consists of the 
production of local commercials, documentaries and feature films, 
increasingly, the Province is also used as a base for the facilitation and 
provision of logistical and technical services for foreign productions. 

spatially, gauteng’s film and tV industry is clustered predominantly 
along a corridor linking the two main broadcast hubs around the 
south african Broadcasting Corporation (saBC) headquarters in 
auckland Park and multichoice in randburg. 

supporting the industry across the production value chain is a 
complex and often fragmented system of both hard and soft 
infrastructure consisting of the skills, equipment, technology and 
facilities required to take a production from script and story board 
stage through to production, post-production and ultimately 
distribution and broadcast. 

in terms of production facilities, the facilities in gauteng tend to be 
small- to medium-sized by international standards. there is some 
evidence to suggest that prior to the recession, many of the 
medium and larger-scale studios were expanding and operated at 
full capacity.  

Compared to many jurisdictions, location costs are generally still 
very low across the Province, with the gfC seeking to ensure that 
municipalities apply a fair permit fee.

operating 
environment

Big Ideas. Perfect Locations.
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NATuRE OF JOBS CREATED IN THE SECTOR
employment in the industry is often characterised by:  
•  Project-specific, short-term assignments;
•  freelancing;
•  High levels of networking, in what is essentially a small industry;
•  reliance on reputation and word of mouth;
•  Cross-border skills mobility and ‘brain-drain’; 
•  skill shortages, in some areas; and
•   the importance of casting and crewing agents, sometimes 

regarded as the industry ‘gate-keepers’. 

according to the industry’s seta (maPP seta 2010/2011), although 
not yet quantified, the film and electronic media has a need for 
professionals, such as line producers, directors and accountants.  
on a technical basis, there is also a need for technical directors, 
camera operators, key grips and gaffers. 

TRAINING AND SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
according to the most recent research done by maPP seta in 
2010, a total of 10,851 employees nationally in the film and 
entertainment industry were registered and participated in the 2010 
survey. of these, 6,207 (57.2%) were males, 4,569 (42.1%) were 
females and 75 (0.69%) were people with disability. in the film and 
electronic media, while 5,195 training programs were planned, only 
3,331 (64.1%) actually took place in gauteng. out of the 3,331 
training programs, 1,535 (46%) attendees were africans, 932 (28%) 
were White, 640 (19.2%) were Coloured and 224 (6.7%) were 
indian, while there was an even gender split, with 50% females, 48% 
males and 2% unaccounted for (maPP seta 2010/2011).  

ensuring a suitable skills base requires that trainee technicians have 

access to on-the-job training opportunities and can pursue formal 
skills training at either tertiary education level or through the pursuit 
of a national qualification accredited with the relevant sector 
education and training authority (seta).

for new entrants not able to secure work-based training, the easiest 
route of accessing the industry is through scholarships, bursaries or 
learnerships and other training programmes run by seta accredited 
training providers. 

Compared to other provinces, gauteng enjoys a well-developed 
range of training organisations ranging from short-term skills 
programmes to post-graduate degrees offered by universities. in 
addition, various industry support organisations offer assistance to 
prospective students and learners.  Data from the National film and 
Video foundation (NfVf) shows that by far the highest number of 
scholarships awarded by the NfVf is to students in gauteng. 
according to the gfC, there are over 19 schools, colleges and 
universities servicing the industry in gauteng.

as the industry is heavily influenced by changes in technology, access 
to up-to-date hardware and software remains a challenge, with 
wealthy private tertiary institutions currently best placed to ensure 
that their students have access to the right technology. at present, 
such institutions are principally located in Johannesburg, and to a 
lesser extent tshwane, thus reinforcing an urban industry footprint. 

CHALLENGES FACING THE SECTOR
the south african audio-visual industry as a whole is facing a number 
of challenges, including:
•   structural constraints such as high volatility, general unprofitability 

and monopolised international distribution networks;

operating environment



Annual Report 2011 GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION 13

•   Prohibitive film production costs coupled with very limited private 
production financing;

•   Large volumes of imported film content coupled with high levels 
of piracy;

•   increasing dependence on government funds as a means to 
protect and promote local film content;

•   rapidly changing consumer tastes and behaviour, with the 
emergence of new interactive media platforms and technologies;

•   Lack of competitiveness relative to competitor countries;
•   skills development – limited and accurate data on current and 

future skills requirements, skills gaps and employment equity; 
•   audience development – due to previous spatial, social and 

economic planning inequalities, most south africans are located in 
townships and rural areas with little or no cinemas/exhibition 
outlets. geographical distance from cinemas and ticket pricing has 
precluded growth in previously disadvantaged groups;

•   access to finance and incentives – there are a number of barriers 
to accessing finance and incentives for productions and other 
activities along the industry value chain; and

•   Co-ordination between key institutions and various industry 
bodies is lacking, resulting in misaligned strategies and duplication 
of efforts.

FIFA 2010 WORLD CuP SOuTH AFRICA
Despite the severe competitive challenges of the previous year, the 
gauteng audio-visual industry rose to the opportunity presented by 
the 2010 fifa World Cup south africa, particularly with a large 
percentage of overseas media and crew selecting gauteng, and 
Johannesburg, as their base during the World Cup period. 

as the Province’s audio-visual industry encompasses a range of 

creative production activities and is strong in the initial stages of the 
value chain (pre-production, production and post-production), it 
made sense for the Province to be used as a base for the facilitation 
and provision of logistical and technical services. With over 900 
organisations registered on the gfC database, it was clear that 
competition to supply services to foreign productions was rigorous 
and that cast and crew costs, as a result, were competitively priced 
both nationally and globally.

the gauteng film and tV industries benefited through the hosting of 
the World Cup, which took place in south africa in June and July 
2010.  Benefits included:
•   ‘fixers’ and freelance crew being hired on World Cup related 

productions;
•   Benefits from new locations, including the iconic soccer City and 

revamped ellis Park and Loftus Versfeld  stadiums, and international 
exposure of these locations;

•   Promoting and selling local content abroad to international 
broadcasters and networks; and

•   skills and technology transfer, such as HDtV (high definition 
television).

However, it must be noted that the opportunities could not be 
leveraged to maximum benefit due to certain inherent limitations. 
for example, interest in local content by international buyers could 
not be satisfied due to the absence of quality local content and copy 
right restrictions prohibiting producers from selling their content.  
further, location restrictions constrained location access and 
production displacements were experienced, most prominently in 
the commercials sector.
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COMMERCIALS PRODuCTION
the commercials sector is very competitive, with over 50 companies 
that specialise in tV commercials. gauteng-based advertising agencies 
consistently produce internationally competitive creative work as 
evidenced by the high proportion of Loerie or other national award 
winners from these agencies. most recently the Province raked in a 
number of awards at the annual Cannes Lions advertising festival, 
suggesting that the industry meets rigorous international industry 
standards.

according to the 6th Commercial Producers industry survey 2010, 
the total industry size for 2009/2010 is estimated at r1,1 billion 
turnover, based on estimated company sizes and values derived from 
all available surveys through imputation.  the average total turnover 
generated, for all types of commercials produced, per company, for 
the 2009/2010 period was r26 million and the total turnover 
generated for all commercial productions was r868 million.

the total number of local origin commercials (Local Commercials) is 
the highest (i.e. 317 commercials), but these commercials were shot 
in fewer shoot days and generated less turnover than commercials 
originated by foreign agencies, which are produced by foreign 
production companies with the assistance of south african service 
companies (service Commercials). the average number of Local 
Commercials produced per participating company was the highest. 
Commercials originated by foreign agencies and produced by south 
african director-based production companies (int/sa Commercials) 
made up the smallest component in the industry.

respondents reported that they produced 660 commercials in the 
2009/2010 period (compared to 672 in the 2008/2009 period), although 
the number of commercials shot in High Definition (HD) increased 
dramatically, showing the continued popularity and acceptance of HD as 

film medium (a jump from 63 to 115, a 182,5% increase).

of concern for the gauteng industry is that Johannesburg Head 
office production companies produced fewer commercials, over 
fewer shoot days, and generated less turnover compared with Cape 
town Head office production companies.

one of the survey’s key findings is that BBBee continues to be in the 
early stages of implementation within the sector.  there appear to be 
varying degrees of understanding of ratings and the survey 
participants reported below average performance in terms of equity.

TV BROADCAST 
gauteng is home to approximately 70% of all south african tV 
productions with the total gauteng tV industry estimated to be 
worth approximately r700 million. importantly, major television 
series can have larger budgets than some features films. saBC tV 
reaches 19 million viewers and DstV/m-Net 1.5 million, of which 
the majority of the viewers are located in gauteng. also significant is 
the fact that 7 out of the top 10 sa tV shows are gauteng-based. 

DISTRIBuTION TRENDS
the introduction of the Department of trade & industry (Dti) 
rebate, through which local producers are given a 35% rebate on 
their production cost, has had a noticeable effect on the local feature 
film industry. Local production was given an added boost in 2008 
through a significant relaxation of the international co-production 
aspect of the Dti rebate’s qualifying threshold, opening the door for 
lower-budget domestic productions by emerging filmmakers. 

While in 2001 only three local feature films were released 
domestically, by 2010 this had grown to an impressive 24 local 
releases, of which 17 films were rebated films. this clearly 
demonstrates the success of the rebate programme.

operating environment
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yet, it is not just the volume of releases that has shown impressive 
growth. research shows that box office takings from local releases 
are also on the upswing. December 2010, for example, saw 
impressive box office receipts from local films with a combined value 
of r30 million. this was despite stiff competition from fresh 
instalments of the Harry Potter and Narnia franchises and a host of 
Christmas animated films. 

it is also interesting to note the increasing content diversity apparent 
after 2008, the year of the rebate relaxation. as from this date, local 
films start to deviate from the tried-and-tested apartheid and aiDs 
dramas and narrow afrikaans slapstick films to embrace greater 
diversity. Niche films that appeal to a spread of languages and cultures 
are clearly now experiencing a ‘new wave’. similarly, the rise of 
afrikaans film demonstrates that a loyal audience is one who feels its 
values and culture are being reinforced. Peona is Koning and Bakgat! 
exploded the myth that the large distributors held dear – that local 
films need to be american or in english to be popular. Jock of the 
Bushveld, currently still in post-production (and set for release in July 
2011), will show if this trend can hold true for feature-length 
animated films as well, where the market has traditionally been 
dominated by Hollywood fare. 

twenty sa feature films were released in 2010, enjoying mixed reviews 
and attendance figures, the three biggest revenue generators being 
Schuks Tshabalala’s Survival Guide to SA, Spud, and Liefling, Die Movie, but 
with films such as Skin pulling in very respectable audience figures. 

of local feature films released in the first quarter of 2011, gfC-
funded Paradise Stop (produced by stepping stone Productions, the 
same team behind the successful and critically acclaimed romantic 
comedy, White Wedding), has enjoyed the highest attendance figures,  
followed by the afrikaans film Getroud met Rugby. 

ultimately these trends point to greater variety, greater quality and a 
greater appetite for experimentation and risk taking among gauteng’s 
filmmakers while local audiences are clearly willing to support  
local content. 

one of the concerns regarding cinema in gauteng, is that most 
cinema complexes are primarily located in the more wealthy suburbs 
of Johannesburg and tshwane. However, figures show that inner-city 
cinema complexes, such as maponya mall, are increasingly attracting 
a younger generation of new cinema goers.

LOOKING AHEAD
the 2010 fifa World Cup south africa placed the spotlight firmly 
on this country, highlighting not only the beauty and versatility of its 
locations, but also the professionalism and skills of the local film and 
tV industry sector and the viability of gauteng and south africa as a 
film destination.  

as the global and local economies continue to recover over the 
coming years, there is evidence that global growth in the industry will 
be sustained.  in addition, the awarding of new pay-tV licences, 
increased international interest in location sa, digitisation and other 
factors, may mean that gauteng will begin to experience pressure on 
its production capacity.

the long-term competitiveness of the south africa audio-visual 
industry is reliant on the availability of technical expertise and state-
of-the-art technologies and infrastructure. While gauteng has 
traditionally been strong in these areas, its future development as 
africa’s principal production centre requires concerted public and 
private investment to stimulate productivity-enhancing activities in 
the face of rising regional and international competition.  



Emmarentia Dam. Image courtesy of the City of 
Johannesburg. Photographer Walter Kirr
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in line with the fiscally tight environment in which the industry and 
the country found itself during the year under review, the gfC 
prioritised programmes aimed at supporting employment creation 
in the sector. although the audio-visual sector is comparatively 
small, it offers major growth opportunity to the gauteng economy 
and labour market.

as is clear from international research, the film and tV industries 
have been growing faster than most other sectors in terms of job 
creation and provide quality, sustainable and ‘green’ jobs. While the 
local industry has seen strong growth in revenues over the past 
decade, this has not necessarily resulted in new job creation as 
business models have been overly reliant on the broadcasters and 
distributors. the challenge facing the gfC during 2010/2011 and 
into the future is to ensure that, despite tough economic conditions, 
job losses are countered and that additional jobs are created in the 
medium to longer term.  this is especially vital as gauteng already 
enjoys the bulk of south african’s creative talent and hence needs 
to both protect and grow this talent.

The current role of the GFC
as the agency of the gauteng Provincial government tasked with 
the development and promotion of the audio-visual industries in 
gauteng, the gfC’s core business is to facilitate and enhance the 
contribution of the industry to the economic growth of the 
Province.  

While there is no doubt that the gfC has been successful in its 
‘outward’ strategy, there was a sense that this strategy has by and 
large mostly benefited the established industry.

there was therefore a need for the gfC to up-scale its ‘inward’ 
strategy, through more focussed and dedicated support 
programmes aimed at the development of the local independent 
filmmaking industry, and in particular, to support the emergence of 
a new generation of black filmmakers. the constrained fiscal 
environment meant that independent filmmakers were particularly 
vulnerable.  this support was aligned with the commitment to play 
a more proactive role in driving job creation.

Big Ideas. Perfect Locations.

Performance
summary
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as a result, for not only the 2010/2011 financial year but for the 
following three years, significant emphasis is to be placed on job 
creation and content development, while still delivering film 
commission services to the established industry.

as such, the gfC’s key strategic objectives are to:
•  Deliver professional film commission services;
•   increase the number of participants involved in the development, 

production and distribution of independently made films;
•  Develop local content markets; and
•   Develop and maintain effective business processes (in respect of 

legal services, human resource management, financial management, 
stakeholder relations and information and technology services).

these strategic focus areas are backed by specific, clearly identified 
programmes to ensure delivery, the achievements of which are 
highlighted in the sections industry support and Development; marketing, 
Communications and research; and management of the gfC below. 

following on from Phase 1 of ‘Project gaullywood’, where the gfC 
benchmarked its activities against global industry models , the gfC 
carried out Phase 2, namely research and a report which set the 
framework for the development of production infrastructure in 
gauteng, in particular through the development of a ‘film City’, a 
local film and media hub, that would contribute to the growth of the 
industry as well as develop job creation and content development.  it 
is envisaged that film City would be an institutional, training, 
networking, production, screening and broadcast hub, the first centre 
of its kind on the african continent, and would provide support to 
emerging filmmakers and production companies, while creating 
exposure to the sector for local communities. Developing the film 
centre would generate economic, social and creative benefits for 
gauteng, south africa and the continent as a whole. the report is 
currently under review.

INDuSTRY SuPPORT AND DEVELOPMENT
Strategic objective: increase the number of participants 
involved in the development, production and distribution 
of independently made films.

Project support 
Due to the economic environment and past reliance on broadcasters 
through commissioned projects which can no longer be depended 
upon, the gfC has taken a leadership role in exploring and facilitating 
alternative business models that enable resilience in challenging 
climates.

During the year under review, the gfC continued to provide support 
to low budget independent filmmakers who do not qualify for the 
Dti rebate (currently for those working in the r2,5 – r10 million 
budget bracket), as well as to low budget filmmakers working in the 
r2,5 – r10m bracket that need soft financing in order to develop, 
complete or distribute their projects.

the gfC also prioritised funding the production of production-
ready low budget feature films.  the production development and 
distribution phases of the production value chain are the areas of 
significant employment potential and to this end, the gfC looked to 
enter into agreements with studios, edit suites, post production 
facilities and independent distributors to ensure  films were being 
produced at substantially reduced costs and that significant local 
distribution occurred. 

Strategic objective: develop local content markets.
the gfC continued with the delivery of audience-related 
development programmes, aimed at the development of sustainable 
local content markets, with a focus on content distribution, audience 
development, market development, and commercial stability, 
sustainability and viability of sector-based entities, all delivered by the 
gfC in partnership with other entities.

Performance summary



Annual Report 2011 GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION 19

Content development
15 feature films, tV series and documentaries were supported by the 
gfC in 2010/2011. of the three tV series, Ekasi drama series was a joint 
initiative of the gfC and e.tv, consisting of 12 x 24 minute short films 
produced to showcase gauteng’s filmmakers and content to key 
producers and filmmakers from other parts of the world, and broadcast 
on e.tv. following the success of this, a second series, Ekasi stories, 
consisting of 26 x 48 minute films, is currently in script development.

of the feature films, two (Skyf and Night Drive) have been released, 
two are in post-production (The Adventures of Bhamuza and Zion) 
while Soweto Drift, by young minds Productions, is in final mix.  

all of the five documentaries supported have been completed, with 
well-known director Pule Diphare’s Sisters in Wonderland being 
released with much acclaim. Post production assistance was provided 
to The Dawn of a New Day, which was broadcast of south africa’s 
new channel, top tV.

a total of 491 project-based contract jobs were created through 
gfC’s support of local productions.

Training and skills development
an innovative project, run by the Khulisani foundation, called 
Campaign for girls, received support through funding of a girls’ 
leadership camp in february 2011. Campaign for girls is one of 
south africa’s biggest online information centres and mobilises high 
school girls, with the website serving as the bridge between aspiring 
girls and inspiring women.  

support was also given to script to screen, a project run by Big fish 
school of Digital filmmaking, to unearth untapped talent from various 
localities within gauteng and to pioneer a generation of local filmmakers 
equipped with essential literature and film knowledge that will form the 

foundation for future filmmaking in indigenous languages.

in a collaboration between the gfC, the saBC and the french 
embassy, a workshop was held in october 2010, aimed at educating 
emerging filmmakers about the realities of the film industry, dispelling 
the myth of it being a pure glamour industry, as well as demonstrating 
the latest european audio-visual trends.

Audience development
through gfC initiatives, a total of 4,978 previously disadvantaged 
audience members attended screenings, aimed at developing local 
content and generating interest and excitement in gauteng’s audio-
visual industry.  

the edutainment schools expo project, hosted by the thuto-Ke-
Lehumo foundation, successfully held 10 screenings in schools in the 
tshwane metropolitan. the project, creating a balance between 
education and entertainment, took place after school, targeting high 
school learners and educating them about the film industry in 
gauteng and south africa.

african women filmmakers were placed firmly on the map with the 
launch of the first african women festival to take place in south 
africa. the seven day Women of the sun festival in Johannesburg 
featured 25 films by 23 talented women filmmakers from 15 african 
countries, with 15 of the filmmakers present at the screenings.

two premiers, with an audience of 1,900 between them, were 
supported by the gfC, Night Drive and Paradise Stop, the latter 
produced by well-known film personalities Kenneth Nkosi, rapulana 
seiphomo and director Jann turner (the same team behind the 
hugely successful and critically acclaimed romantic comedy, White 
Wedding).

for a complete list of projects, see page 24.
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MARKETING, COMMuNICATIONS AND RESEARCH
Strategic objective: deliver professional film commission 
services.

Due to substantial budget cuts and the refocused priorities, the focus 
in marketing and communications, over and above the World Cup 
activities, was on maintaining brand presence with local producers.

Electronic and web marketing and communications
as electronic and web marketing offer a relatively cost effective 
means of continuing to retain brand presence, during the year under 
review the gfC ensured a comprehensive on-line commission 
service and served as a key on-line content partner for the industry. 
a refreshed gfC website was launched, with content, events and 
industry news uploaded weekly. electronic and web marketing was 
also utilised as an effective tool in the build-up to, during and post the 
World Cup.  for example, a special World Cup edition of in focus 
newsletter was produced, while in the build-up, features on the 
Province’s 2010 readiness and useful location and permit information 
were published in the newsletter, received monthly by over 4,000 
local and international industry players.

Providing location and logistical support
the gfC continued to implement the Permit framework, as well as 
the ‘film friendly gauteng’ initiative, with a view to ensuring the long-
term attractiveness and competitiveness of the Province as a 
production centre and preferred location. Location support and 
assistance includes offering assistance identifying location, securing 
the necessary permit and management approvals from property 
owners and providing support with pitches, in the case of 
commercials.  Liaison with the relevant authorities and troubleshooting 
location problems continues to be an important, and well utilised, 
service.

GFC permit facilitation  
in the 2010/2011 financial year, the percentage of permits processed 
by the gfC rose by 9,3% over the previous year (146 to 157).  the 
busiest month was June 2010, an indication that the fifa World Cup 
had a substantial impact on permit requests in gauteng.  the highest 
number of permits processed were for tV commercials.  

Johannesburg continued to retain its dominant share of location 
filming, utilising publicly controlled locations, in gauteng. While most 
location shoots in the Province are urban (in line with global trends), 
it must be noted that many shoots involving privately owned 
locations, particularly on the West rand, occur regularly but are not 

included in the gfC’s production data as they generally do not 
require public filming permits or traffic control.  the five top areas for 
location filming are, in descending order, Johannesburg CBD, soweto, 
sandton, Pretoria and Braamfontein.

the impact of the fifa World Cup and the gradual resurgence in the 
audio-visual sector is reflected in the growth in the number of jobs 
arising as a result of permit facilitation, indicated by casting and crew 
sizes data supplied by permit applicants. for 2010/2011 financial year, 
the number was 3,024, a 64,9% increase over the previous year 
(1,833), with the two key spike periods being June 2010 (539 jobs) 
and august 2010 (580 jobs).  

95% client satisfaction with GFC
to ascertain both the service levels regarding permit facilitation and 
location scouting offered by the gfC as well as ways of improving 
the service, the Commission conducted a client satisfaction survey 
during the year under review.  the survey also rated clients’ overall 
experience with permitting authorities. respondents to the 
computer aided telephonic interviews were selected randomly from 
the gfC’s database, based on dealings with respondents in 2010 and 
included producers, production managers, unit managers and 
location scouts.  

95% of the respondents reported having had a satisfactory 

Performance summary
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experience in working with the gfC, with ratings ranging from good 
to excellent, while 80% commended gfC staff for their friendliness 
and usefulness. While 92,5% indicated the information received from 
the gfC was very useful, concerns were raised around the speed of 
permitting authorities’ processes when issuing permits and the 
efficiency of their staff. this is an area that the gfC is trying to 
improve through continued engagement and regular communication 
with the relevant permitting authorities.

using the 2010 FIFA World Cup South Africa as a platform
in addition, the World Cup presented an excellent window period 
for the gfC to promote gauteng’s audio-visual industry to the 
world and thereby contribute to the long-term development and 
growth of local content and filmmakers.  While the gfC had already 
in the 2009/2010 financial year drawn up a comprehensive marketing 
plan and commenced extensive preparation and activities for  
the first World Cup on african soil, during the year under review  
this was honed and then rolled out, bearing in mind reduced  
budget expenditure.  

the Commission’s fifa 2010 World Cup key objectives and focus 
areas were to:
•   Promote gauteng as principal host Province to the film and tV 

industry;
•   Provide a professional film commission service to visiting tV crew 

and media professionals; 
•   Liaise with key official bodies on location filming restrictions in 

place during the World Cup; 
•   Compile and promote a catalogue of 2010 and soccer themed 

film and tV titles and support iconic projects;
•   Leverage the substantial interest generated by the World Cup to 

promote gauteng’s audio-visual industry through hosting a 
gauteng africa film Week; and 

•   Promote the export of locally made gauteng-content to 
international tV networks and other buyers. 

Promoting local content
in the build-up to the event, a 2010 catalogue was developed due to 
the dearth of 2010-themed content, with international buyers 
clamouring for programmes covering the World Cup, south africa 
and africa in general. in addition to 14 titles, the catalogue contains 
international sales contacts for m-Net, the saBC, e.tv as well as the 
african film Library, an m-Net initiative showcasing the best of the 
african film industry. the catalogue was widely distributed both 
locally and internationally, including festivals such as miPtV, the leading 
global content market for creating, co-producing, buying, selling, 
financing and distributing entertainment across all platforms. During 
the World Cup, the guide was distributed through the gateway 
media Centres in Braamfontein and sandton.  

Rating the experience  
of working with GFC
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Performance summary

to further assist in promoting local film titles to visitors and fans, the 
gfC successfully secured trading space for Bliksem, a distribution 
company handling locally made DVDs, at the mary fitzgerald square 
Public Viewing area in Newtown, with the support of the gauteng 
enterprise Propeller (geP). 

Location filming support
the gfC closely monitored the impact of the World Cup in order 
to ensure that the Commission was up to date with information 
around locations and access to stadia for crew and media. the gfC 
anticipated that some locations, especially the ones around the 
stadiums, would not be accessible during the championships and 
hence affect filming among other activities. the gfC was in regular 
discussions with the local industry to ensure that disruptions to 
location filming would be minimised. the Commission also assisted 
visiting international crew with accessing 2010-related venues. to this 
end, the gfC compiled and widely distributed 2010 Crew and 
media guidelines. these guidelines were distributed, among others, to 
embassies and foreign consulates based in the Province. the 
Commission also issued World Cup filming arrangements to the 
industry a month prior to the event and kept the industry informed 
of any restrictions.

some of the key location filming issues the gfC had to address:
•  monitor and respond to location fee increases;
•   respond to situations where major stadiums would not be 

accessible to media and crew;
•  manage fifa filming restrictions;
•   monitor and respond to hospitality and travel price increases;
•   manage fragmented communications from host cities regarding 

restrictions; and
•  manage production displacement.

Facilitating and promoting soccer film festivals
During the World Cup, the gfC was involved in the 4th africa on 
screen and soccer film festival as well as co-hosting Brazilian film 
festivals. the former, which took place in Newtown and arts on 
main in the CBD, saw 30 films screened including a host of soccer 
related films in celebration of the World Cup. Daily free screenings 
and workshops were run.

in association with the Bioscope, the gauteng tourism authority 
(gta) and the gauteng 2010 gateway, the gfC also facilitated the 
Brazilian football & Human rights film festival and the Brazilian film 

festival (both running during June and July 2010). all screenings were 
well received.

International media hosting
During June 2010, the gfC assisted the gauteng 2010 gateway team in 
establishing the two media centres. a number of international media/
crew were given assistance with locations and permits and through the 
gta, daily familiarisation tours of the Province were scheduled.

information about the gfC and the south african film industry in 
general were distributed at the media centres, with all staff working 
at the media centres being briefed about location filming 
requirements. By the end of the championship, the gfC had not 
received a single complaint from visiting international crew and 
media regarding location filming or permits. 

MANAGEMENT OF THE GFC
Strategic objective: develop and maintain effective business 
processes in order to ensure the effective functioning of 
the organisation.

to ensure that the re-prioritised programmes were emphasised, the 
gfC implemented strong cost savings measures, including:
•  Delaying new iCt infrastructure capital investment;
•   reducing travel related costs and international trips previously 

undertaken to promote local content and gauteng as a premier 
film location destination;

•  reducing office administration costs; and
•  reducing corporate entertainment and sponsorships.

as part of an annual risk management process, a strategic risk analysis 
of the gfC’s main risks, including financial, human resource, political, 
environmental, organisational and operational, is carried out and risk 
mitigation strategies developed. these reflected, in the year under 
review, that the gfC had carried out mitigation actions to manage 
identified risks.

the gfC continued to provide an effective and efficient support 
service to comply with its mandate.  further, management continued 
to ensure effective financial, audit, human resources, stakeholder 
relations and administrative functions to support the strategic 
imperatives of the gfC and to ensure compliance with applicable 
legislation and treasury regulations.

an unqualified audit report was achieved for the 2010/2011 financial 
year, while 100% compliance with corporate governance requirements 
was retained. organisationally, the gfC remains stable.
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to deliver professional film 
commission services.

to increase the number of 
participants involved in the 
development, production 
and distribution of 
independently made films in 
order to realise the sector’s 
full job preservation and 
creation potential.

to develop local content 
markets.

to develop and maintain 
effective business processes 
(in respect of legal services, 
human resource 
management, financial 
management and 
information and technology 
services) in order to ensure 
the effective functioning of 
the organisation.

increased number of users 
satisfied with current location 
filming support provided by gfC 
from 60% to 80% annually.

increased number of project-
based contract employment 
created in the gauteng film 
industry, through gfC support,  
to 448 annually.

Number of projects supported 
to 12 annually.

increased number of previously 
disadvantaged audience members 
attending screenings to 1,200 
annually.

submission of annual financial 
statements and performance 
reports to auditor-general by  
31 may 2011.

retain compliance with 
corporate governance 
requirements at 100% by  
march 2011.

audited and approved financial 
statements by may 2011.

to ensure that gfC finalises the 
termination of CNBC africa 
contract during the financial year.

target reached and exceeded.

target reached and exceeded.

target reached and exceeded.

target reached and exceeded.

target reached and exceeded.

target reached and exceeded.

target reached.

target reached.

target reached.

target reached.

increased user satisfaction 
with locations filming 
support provided by 
gauteng film Commission.

Number of permits 
facilitated through gfC.

Number of indirect jobs 
facilitated through gfC 
permit facilitation.

Number of project-based 
contract employment 
created.

Number of film and 
television projects supported 
by the gfC.

Number of previously 
disadvantaged audience 
members attending 
screenings.

ensure achievement of the 
gfC strategic plan. 

retain compliance with 
corporate governance 
requirements at 100% by 
march 2011.

to terminate CNBC africa 
contract.

95% of the respondents have had 
a satisfactory experience working 
with gfC.

gfC has achieved 7% increase in 
the number of permits facilitated 
during the current financial year.

through gfC permit support 
there has been a 64% increase in 
the number of indirect jobs 
created in the sector.

target met, 491 contract-based 
employment has been created 
through gfC support.

target met, total number of film 
and television projects supported 
during the year was 15.

target met, a total of 4,978 
audience members attended 
screenings through gfC initiatives.

on target.

100% compliance reported  
to date.

on target.

gfC has terminated CNBC africa 
contract by mutual agreement 
during the current financial year.

 Goal Key performance Target Performance result Reason for
  areas (KPIs)    variance
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Performance summary

Project

The Adventures 
of Bhamuza

Skyf

Night Drive

Soweto Drift 

Zion

Ekasi drama 
series 

SABC Ispecial

Synopsis

When Bhamuza and his girlfriend, mari Jane, witness an assault committed 
by the infamous ‘tie Band gang’ they themselves become prime 
targets. the mild-mannered Bhamuza is forced to call upon his martial 
arts training to defend his girlfriend and to teach the gang a lesson.

interweaves the journey of five strangers, all connected by their common 
addiction – smoking.  the film aims to educate the youth about the 
dangers of addiction in an entertaining way with memorable characters.

a thriller about a group of tourists left stranded during a night time 
game drive after their vehicle breaks down.  as a series of events 
unfold, the tourists realise the wild animals are the least of their fears.

the dreams of Dumisane ‘Damage’ Khuzwayo, a young, naïve but 
volatile aspiring drag-racing driver, are thrown off track by the death of 
his dear only brother, melusi ‘mzala’ Khuzwayo in a mysterious car accident. 
Damage finds himself inextricably trapped in an intricate web of secret 
schemes plotted by the killers who took his brother’s life. through his 
journey, he, Damage,develops a love for box shape BmW 325i’s which 
grows to the point where it threatens his relationship with his long-
term girlfriend, Dineo ‘Dinny’ moletsane, the mother of his eight-month 
old daughter, ayanda moletsane. 

Zion, shot in south africa, is a romantic dance story set in a non-
descript metropolis. the film follows sara, an ethiopian girl, and her 
adjustment in a country that is now anti-immigrants. Zion is a tale of 
the plight of african students in the Diaspora and the obstacles that 
they face, including working illegally while carrying full course loads.  
their plight is compounded when their fees are increased. a dance 
competition, with a prize of $100,000, offers a chance to raise the 
monies to pay their fees. the african students form a dance crew with 
students from south africa, Zimbabwe, ethiopia, Congo Nigeria and the 
Caribbean.  a rival group, made up of primarily american students, 
makes things difficult for them, by reporting some of the africans to the 
iNs and getting them deported. sara, in addition to adjusting to a new 
country, falls in love with another african student and their love is 
tested by the different rivals and hardships that face a typical african 
student in the Diaspora.

12 x 24 min short films produced to showcase gauteng’s filmmakers 
(eclipse Productions, seleke Communications and sobabili Productions) and 
content to key producers and filmmakers from other parts of the world.

Ispecial will tell stories driven by the boys in the series and draw upon a 
wide pool of characters (parents, siblings, teachers), to create a rich 
environment ripe with possibilities. the central story in the first series 
(48’ x 13 episodes) is about a hit-and-run car accident that thrusts 
ordinary law-abiding people into frightening circumstances and tests 
family relationships. this story will be supported by stories about absent 
fathers, the importance of education, sexuality, friendship and self 
empowerment. some of the younger characters to feature prominently 
in the first series are 8-year old Clement and 11-year old Pretty, who 
are also preoccupied with their own childhood issues. our characters’ 
trials and tribulations will grip you to the very last episode. you’ll laugh, 
cry, feel and you’ll learn. isn’t that what good stories are all about?

Total
budget

r40,000

r80,000

r150,000

r175,000

r100,000

r300,000

r350,000

Submitted/
Initiated by

Diprente

easy sunday 
Productions

film factory

young minds 
Productions

Letcosmant 
trading

e.tv and gfC

saBC

Classification

Content 
development  
– sound 

Content 
development  
– post production

Content 
development

Content 
development

Content 
development  
– production

Content 
development  
– post production

Content 
development  
– production 
support

Status

in post 
production 

Completed 
and released 

Completed 
and released 

in final mix

in post 
production

Completed 
and broadcast 
on e.tv

Currently  
in pre 
production

Industry support and development

Feature films

TOTAL

47

45

69

20

123

67

95

TV series
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Project

Ekasi stories

The Dawn of a 
New Day

Sisters in 
Wonderland

Wembley to 
Soweto

Judgement Day 
– Masters of 
Rhythm 

We Were There 
– Egoli World 
Cup Fever

industry 
Workshop 

script to screen

Synopsis

26 x 48 min films produced to showcase gauteng’s filmmakers (eclipse 
Productions, seleke Communications and sobabili Productions) and 
content to key producers and filmmakers from other parts of the 
world, to be broadcast on e.tv.

a south african plastic surgeon makes a drastic decision to give up his 
private practice and leave his family behind to provide free surgery in 
West africa.

a 19 year old girl makes a living on the streets of sunnyside by selling 
her body and pride for money to satisfy her drug habit.

John Cole, a renowned photographer who took the picture of the 
iconic former president Nelson mandela`s 70th birthday at Wembley, 
visited sa to give intensive photography training for previously 
disadvantaged people. this documentary takes us through the 
sequences of events surrounding his visit. 

Judgement Day – Masters of Rhythm is based on annual youth event 
called masters of rhythm. the event, a Hip Hop Krump dance 
competition, is the biggest urban youth dance event in gauteng and 
probably in south africa. Masters of Rhythm hosts the 16 – 24 year old 
youth market to an extravaganza of dance and music entertainment, 
with youth expressing themselves through dance battles live on stage 
for an audience of over 10,000 youth.

experience the emotional journey of a soccer fan as if you were 
there and discover the legacy of 2010 fifa World Cup in south 
africa. Egoli World Cup Fever is an emotional roller coaster ride with 
Coco merckel interacting with local and foreign fans as they navigate 
their way through the highly anticipated world soccer event. the film 
creatively captures the excitement and surprising developments during 
the tournament. our leading soccer fan character, Coco, is a high 
energy, multi-lingual, quick-witted, charismatic personality, who keeps 
his audience laughing yet intrigued as he unfolds the layers in his quest 
for ‘fairplay’. the juxtaposition of the diverse soccer fans, coupled with 
Coco’s sense of humour, peppered with cheeky props and comments 
results in interesting and entertaining interactions, opening the doors 
on a variety of cultures and celebrations.

this workshop had a special focus on pursuing filmmaking as a career 
as well as latest european audio-visual trends.  the aim was to educate 
emerging filmmakers about the realities of the film industry, dispelling 
the myth of it being a pure glamour industry.

the principal objectives of the script to screen project are to unearth 
untapped talent from various localities within the gauteng Province 
and to pioneer a generation of south african filmmakers, equipped 
with essential literature and film knowledge that will form the 
foundation for future film-making in indigenous languages.

Total
budget

r350,000

r80,000

r30,000

r50,000

r50,000

r50,000

r10,000

r154,890

Submitted/
nitiated by

e.tv and gfC

marie Verite 
films

Pule Diphare 
Productions

Blue orange 
media

Blacksheep 
Productions

Don Quixote 
media 
association

gfC, saBC 
and french 
embassy 
Partnership

Big fish

Classification

Content 
development – 
script development

Content development  
– post production

Content development  
– post production

Content 
development  
– post production

Distribution support

Content 
development  
– post production

skills development

skills development

Status

Currently in 
script 
development

Completed 
and broadcast 
on top tV

Completed 
and released

Completed 

Completed

Completed 

Workshop 
held on  
28 october 
2010

august 
– November 
2010

Industry support and development

TV series (continued)

TOTAL

80

7

3

3

9

3

35

14

Documentaries

Training and development
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Project

girls leadership 
camp

Women of the 
sun film 
festival 

gfC/JHB 
Professional 
Network 
session

film as a 
Career 
workshops

first 
Wednesday 
film Club

edutainment 
schools expo 
project

Night Drive 
premier 

Paradise Stop 
premier

the Bioscope

Synopsis

Campaign for girls, an online vehicle for social change, is one of south 
africa’s biggest online information centres. it’s an initiative that mobilises 
high school girls around the country, to help them find their passion in 
order to nurture this into a fulfilling livelihood, while being active members 
of the community. the information centre (website), which serves as the 
bridge between aspiring girls and inspiring women, provides a library that 
can be utilised by young girls in their development. information such as 
study tips, bursaries, community projects, career expos, etiquette etc. are 
made accessible to young girls and they become a part of a network of 
other like-minded girls and inspiring mentors.

african women filmmakers were placed firmly on the map with the launch 
of the first african women festival to take place in south africa. the seven 
day Women of the sun film festival in Johannesburg (2 – 9 september 
2010) featured 25 films by 23 talented women filmmakers from 15 
african countries, with 15 of the filmmakers present at the screenings. 

the event served to give nearly 900 members an opportunity to 
learn about the industry and find business opportunities. membership 
is made up of professionals and students, many of whom work in 
entertainment. Closely aligned with mBaConnect, a network for mBa 
students and graduates, it also offered an opportunity to facilitate 
introductions between filmmakers and financial professionals, who 
make up a large number of the membership.

the project is designed to provide a platform for local filmmakers to 
exhibit their craft to local audiences while providing access to local 
films for under- resourced communities.

a platform for filmmakers to interact with industry players, this also 
provides an opportunity to showcase content produced by south african 
filmmakers therefore increasing appetite for local content.

thuto-Ke-Lehumo foundation successfully hosted the edutainment 
schools expo project in 2009/2010, where a balance between education 
and entertainment was created.  taking place on Wednesdays and fridays 
after school, the project targeted high schools around Pretoria townships 
educating learners about the film industry in gauteng and sa. 

a thriller about a group  of tourists left stranded during a night time game  
drive after their vehicle breaks down.  as a series of events unfold, the 
tourists realise the wild animals are the least of their fears.

Paradise Stop is a south african movie produced by Kenneth Nkosi, 
rapulana seiphemo and Jann turner, with seiphemo and Nkosi as the lead 
characters and turner as the director. this is the same award winning team 
that was behind the hugely successful and critically acclaimed romantic 
comedy White Wedding, which grossed over r1,1million on its opening 
weekend on the south african movie circuit. in Paradise Stop, a clean cop 
on a backwater beat discovers that the man behind a series of freeway 
heists is also his only friend in town, the owner of the Paradise truck stop.

monthly film and documentary screenings hosted at sophiatown in 
Newtown.

Total
budget

r26,000

r100,000

r20,000

r48,000

r68,400

r180,000

r150,000

r50,000

r12,000

Submitted/
initiated by

Khulisani 
foundation

Women of the 
sun 

isD unit

isD unit

atlas studios

thuto-Ke-
Lehumo 
foundation

film factory

indigenous film 
Distributors

monday Blues 
Productions

Classification

skills development

audience 
development

audience 
development

audience 
development

audience 
development

audience 
development

audience 
development

audience 
developement

audience 
development

Industry support and development

Training and development (continued)

TOTAL

50

1000

160

1,000

2,140

1,700

900

1,000

139

Audience development

Status

3 – 5 february 
2011

Completed, film 
festival 
successfully 
hosted

Completed, event 
successfully 
hosted at Blues 
room in sandton

succesfully hosted 
in metsweding 
and West rand 
Local District
six month 
partnership (may 
– october 2010) 

succesfully hosted 
10 screenings 
across schools in 
tshwane 
metropolitan

Completed and 
released

Completed and 
released

ongoing monthly 
screenings for 6 
months

Performance summary
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Statement of responsibility
For the year ended 31 March 2011

the Public Finance Management act (PFMa) requires the directors to ensure that GFc keeps full and proper records of its 
financial affairs. the annual financial statements should fairly present the state of the affairs of GFc, its financial results, and its 
financial position at the end of the year. the annual financial statements are the responsibility of the directors.

the annual financial statements of GFc have been prepared in terms of the South african Statements of Generally recognised 
accounting Practice (GraP), including any interpretations of such statements. the annual financial statements have been 
prepared in the manner required by the South african companies act of 1973; the Public Finance Management act, 1 of 
1999; and the relevant treasury regulations. 

these annual financial statements are based on appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgements and estimates; and are prepared on the going concern basis. the directors have every reason to believe that the 
GFc will be a going concern in the year ahead.

to discharge the above responsibilities, the Board of directors set standards to ensure that sound systems of internal control 
are implemented by management.

the controls are designed to provide cost-effective assurance that assets are safeguarded, and that liabilities and working 
capital are efficiently managed. Policies, procedures, structures and approval frameworks provide direction, accountability and 
division of responsibilities.

the controls throughout GFc focus on those critical risk areas identified by operational risk management and confirmed by 
executive management. Management, audit committee and Internal audit closely monitor the controls and ensure action is 
taken to correct deficiencies as they are identified.

the directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by Management, audit committee and 
Internal audit based on the results of their audit, that the material internal accounting controls are adequate to, ensure that 
the financial records may be relied upon for preparing the annual statements, and that accountability for assets and liabilities 
is maintained.

nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these 
controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.

In the opinion of the directors based on the information available to date, the annual financial statements (including cash 
flow information) fairly present the financial position of GFc as at 31 March 2011, and the results of its operations for the 
year then ended.

the annual financial statements of GFc for the year ended 31 March 2011, set out on pages 28 to 59 were reviewed by the 
audit committee on 12 May 2011; the detailed statement of financial performance outlined on pages 60 – 61 is solely for 
information purposes. 

N Kekana   T Tselane
chairperson   chief executive officer
31 May 2011

GFC AR fins 2011 04Aug.indd   28 2011/08/21   11:30 AM



Annual Report 2011 GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION 29

corporate governance report
For the year ended 31 March 2011

GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES
the Board has reaffirmed the GFc commitment to sound governance practices and, in particular, to the Public Finance 
Management act 1 of 1999 (PFMa) as well as the principles underlying the King III report on corporate Governance and the 
protocol on corporate Governance in the public sector as adopted by cabinet in 2002. In this regard, the Board is constantly 
reviewing its corporate governance structures and practices to align it with national best practice. the GFc is committed to 
conducting its affairs with integrity and holds itself responsible and accountable towards its stakeholders and clients.

CODE OF ETHICS THE CODE
the GFc is managed ethically and in line with the code, which is based on the fundamental principles of fairness, transparency, 
integrity, reliability, responsibility and honesty.

the code commits GFc management and staff to high standards of conduct in their dealings with its clients and stakeholders. 
no incidence of unethical conduct that required further investigation or action was reported during the year under review.

VALUES
the GFc promotes sound values and is committed to the Batho Pele principles.

THE GFC’S GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES:

ACCOUNTABILITY TO THE FUNDER
the GFc is an agency established and wholly funded by the Gauteng department of economic development (ded) and 
through its Board of directors is accountable to the ded. the Mec for Gauteng department of economic development 
represents the Gauteng Province’s interest.

ACCOUNTABILITY TO THE MEC FOR GAUTENG DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
the Mec in her capacity as representative of the ded determines the 2010/2011 financial year GFc’s mandate and holds 
the Board accountable for managing and controlling the operations in compliance with its mandate.

a business plan and budget for GFc was submitted to the ded, as required in terms of Section 52 of the Public Finance 
Management act.1 of 1999 (PFMa).

the business plan sets out the strategic objectives and performance criteria and the GFc management is accountable for 
achieving these objectives within the risk parameters.

the Board reports to the ded by way of quarterly and annual reports as well as regular meetings between the ceo and 
the Mec.

the Board is responsible for :
• retaining full and effective control over the GFc; 
• approving the corporate strategy, business plans and budgets and monitoring management closely in implementing it;
• ensuring that the GFc complies with all relevant laws and regulations and codes of best practice; and
• ensuring that effective risk management processes are in place.
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corporate governance report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011

the directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice concerning the affairs of the GFc and to have access to 
any information they may require in discharging their duties.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)
the ceo is charged with the day-to-day management of the GFc operations and assists the Board in providing strategic 
and policy direction to the GFc.

BOARD COMMITTEES
to assist it in discharging its responsibilities, the Board has established the following committees: audit committee, 
remuneration committee, Specification and evaluation committee, Bid adjudication committee and risk Management 
committee as reflected on the board charter.

the terms of reference for each of these committees were reviewed during the year under review and approved by the 
Board. the chairpersons of the subcommittees report to the Board of directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
the audit committee oversees financial reporting, internal control, risk management, funding plans and strategies, compliance, 
corporate governance and policies. It is supported by the Management committee in fulfilling its duties with regard to 
financial risk management. Its responsibilities pertaining to risk management include, but are not limited to:
• reviewing the GFc’s risk management policy and strategy;
• assisting the Board in evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management process; and
•  reviewing the GFc’s significant risk exposures and making recommendations to the Board on appropriate mitigation 

strategies.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
the committee is accountable for monitoring and overseeing the remuneration of all GFc employees; giving due regard to 
the competitiveness within the relevant market as well as the financial wellbeing of the organisation. 

BID ADJUDICATION COMMITTEE
the committee is accountable for monitoring and overseeing the implementation of the procurement policy, procedures and 
code of conduct and monitoring adherence thereto.

SPECIFICATION AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE
this committee is involved in all open tenders of the GFc, and makes recommendation to the Bid committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
the committee which consist of GFc senior managers is responsible for managing the overall risk of the organisation both 
financial and non-financial.
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corporate governance report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011

BOARD COMMITTEES’ COMPOSITION AND RECORD OF ATTENDANCE

Category Name of director Appointment date Number of meetings
    Total Attended
 Mr JP Marnitz 11 october 2002 3 3
Board Mr n Kekana – chairperson 4 June 2005 3 3
 Mr t tselane – executive 1 January 2006 3 3
 Ms S Bulane – hopa  1 March 2008 3 3
 Ms Z nzalo 1 September 2008 3 3

Audit Mr J van der Walt ca(Sa) – chairperson  24 May 2007 4 4
Committee Ms e Makau 24 May 2007 4 3
 Mr JP Marnitz 1 July 2007 4 4
 Mr P Mothudi – ca (Sa) 24 november 2009 4 3

Bid Committee Ms Z nzalo 1 September 2008 1 1
 Mr e Maluleke – Pa (Sa) 1 March 2009 1 1

Remuneration Mr F Manana 1 February 2006 3 3
Committee Mr n Kekana – chairperson 1 april 2008 3 2

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE “MANCO”
Manco comprises GFc executive managers and deals with issues pertaining to the day-to-day management of the business 
of the GFc and is also accountable for formulating the GFc’s strategy and implementing it once approved by the Board.

INTEGRATED RISK MANAGEMENT
In line with the PFMa, the Board is responsible for the management of the risks pertaining to the business of the GFc. the 
Board has delegated this authority to the ceo.

Whilst the line manager of each division within the GFc has the primary responsibility for identifying and managing risks 
inherent to the operations of his/her division, the audit committee develops and reviews risks management strategies, 
policies and procedures to ensure that they are appropriate for the GFc.

Manco reports administratively to the ceo and submits quarterly reports to the audit committee, providing assurance 
on the management of significant risks or exposure. the internal audit function independently audits the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the GFc’s risk, control and governance processes and this function is outsourced.

STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic risk relates to failure of the GFc to deliver on its mandate.

LIQUIDITY RISK
the liquidity risk is managed through careful selection of financial instruments and cash flow forecasting. 
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corporate governance report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011

COMPLIANCE RISK
compliance risk relates to negative impact originating from non-compliance with all applicable legislation and regulations.

the risk Management committee and the chief Financial officer assist management in complying with all applicable statutory 
and regulatory requirements. 

the compliance risk is managed through creating awareness of the regulatory requirements, and monitoring compliance with 
legislative requirements

OPERATIONAL RISK
operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems.

this risk category is managed through a system of internal controls, which is based on approved policies and procedures for 
initiation, verification and reconciliation of transactions, and adequate segregation of incompatible duties. the operational risk 
category includes the following risk areas:
• Fraud
• Financial management
• Legal risk
• human resources risk
• Information risk and
• Business continuity

during the year under review, the audit committee and Board of directors approved finance policies which includes anti 
fraud and corruption policy and avoidance of wasteful and fruitless expenditure. no incidents of fraud or irregular activities 
were reported during the year under review.

REPUTATION RISK
reputation risk is the risk of damage to the GFc’s image which may impair its ability to retain and generate more business.

the GFc manages its reputational risk through its ongoing evaluation and management of the significant risk types highlighted 
above. a communications Manager manages the corporate communications portfolio.

INTERNAL CONTROL
the audit committee assists the Board in discharging its duty to ensure that the GFc maintains adequate accounting records, 
internal controls and systems designed to provide reasonable assurance on the integrity and reliability of financial information 
and to safeguard its assets.

the effectiveness of these internal control systems is monitored through management reviews, formalised reporting and 
internal audits. the internal audit function, under the direction of the audit committee, is outsourced to an independent 
service provider and operates in terms of an Internal audit charter, which was reviewed and approved by the audit 
committee and endorsed by the Board of directors during the year under review.

the internal audit function reports functionally to the audit committee and administratively to the ceo and its staff have full 
and unrestricted access to the chairperson of the audit committee. the internal audit function is outsourced.

the audit committee conducts its own review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function.

all operations, business activities and support functions are subject to internal review. the internal audit plan is based on key 
risk areas identified from risk assessment and the audits are planned and executed to provide management with independent 
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems.
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report of audit committee
For the year ended 31 March 2011

1.  AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY
the audit committee reports that it has discharged all of its responsibilities set out in terms of sec 38 (1) (a) of the Public 
Finance Management act 1 of 1999 as well as in its adopted terms of reference.

In the conduct of its duties, the audit committee has reviewed the following:
• the effectiveness of the internal control systems;
• the effectiveness of the internal audit;
• the risk area of the operations to be covered in the scope of internal and external audits;
•  the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information provided to management and other users of such 

information;
• any accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and external audits;
• compliance with legal ,and regulatory provisions; and
•  the activities of the internal audit function, including its annual audit plan, coordination with the external auditors and the 

responses of management to specific recommendations.

2. INTERNAL CONTROLS
the management of the GFc continues to strive towards sustainable improvement in its control.

nothing has come to the attention of the audit committee to indicate that a material breakdown in the functioning of the 
internal controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.

In the opinion of the audit committee, the internal controls and procedures of the GFc are considered to be appropriate 
in all material respects to:
• Meet the business objectives of the GFc;
• ensure the GFc’s assets are adequately safeguarded; and
• ensure that transactions undertaken are recorded in the GFc’s records.

3. EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
the committee has evaluated the annual financial statements of the GFc for the year ended 31 March 2011 and, based on 
the information provided to the audit committee, considers that they comply, in all material respects, with the requirements 
of the companies act and the Public Finance Management act. 

the audit committee concurs and accepts the auditor-General’s conclusions on the annual financial statements and is of 
the opinion that the annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the auditor-General.

J Van der Walt – CA (SA)    
chairperson of the audit committee
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report of the directors
For the year ended 31 March 2011

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
the directors are pleased to submit their report, together with the GFc financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011.

SERVICE RENDERED BY THE ENTITY
the GFc is an agency of the Gauteng Provincial Government tasked with the development and promotion of the audio-visual 
industry in Gauteng province.

Flowing from this mandate, the GFc’s core business is to facilitate and enhance the contribution of the industry to the growth 
of the province.

CNBC AFRICA TERMINATION CONTRACT
during the current financial year under review cnBc africa and GFc have by mutual agreement terminated the cnBc 
africa contract. the letter of termination was signed by both parties, who both agreed that there will be no further claims 
against each other in respect of the contract. 

GENERAL REVIEW
the GFc is a section 21 company incorporated in terms of the companies act. the main business of the GFc is development 
and promotion of audiovisual industries in Gauteng. GFc’s core business is to deliver professional film commission services, 
as well as to support, facilitate and enhance the contribution of the film industry to the economic growth of the Gauteng 
Province. the business and activities of the GFc for the year are reviewed by the chief executive officer.

REGISTRATION AS A PUBLIC ENTITY
GFc has resubmitted documents for listing as a public entity to Gauteng treasury on 24 april 2010. currently GFc operates 
as a section 21 company, not for gain but is audited as a public entity.

BUSINESS RESULT SUMMARY
    2011 2010
   R R

total revenue  18,050,344 29,986,424
net deficit for the year  (170,885) (2,265,601)
total assets  9,791,754 10,791,427
accumulated surplus  8,000,468 8,171,353
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report of the directors (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011

DIRECTORS
the following persons served as directors of the company during the financial year :

Name of Director Status Appointed  Reappointment 
Mr JP Marnitz non-executive 11 october 2002 1 april 2008
Mr n Kekana (chairperson) non-executive 4 June 2005 1 april 2008
Mr t tselane executive 1 January 2006 
Ms S Bulane-hopa non-executive 1 March 2008 
Ms Z nzalo non-executive 1 September 2008

non-executive directors do not have service contracts with the GFc. only the executive director (ceo) has a three year 
term fixed employment contract.

Registered address Postal address
56 Main Street P o Box 61601
Marshalltown Marshalltown
Johannesburg 2107

INTERNAL AUDIT
during the current financial year under review Gobodo Forensic and Investigative accounting (Pty) Ltd was reappointed as 
internal auditors, responsible for the internal audit of the GFc and assisting management in improving internal control.

REGISTRATION AS A TAX EXEMPTION ORGANISATION
an application for listing GFc as a tax exemption organisation was lodged with the South african revenue Service on 
20 october 2005. correspondence has been received from the South african revenue Service declining the application. 
GFc was however given leave to resubmit the application clearly outlining activities that it performs in relation to its mandate 
of promoting Gauteng as a preferred film destination. the application has been resubmitted during the current year under 
review in line with South african revenue Service requirements. to date, GFc awaits a response.
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report of the auditor-General 
For the year ended 31 March 2011

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON GAUTENG 
FILM COMMISSION

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
1.  I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Gauteng Film commission, which comprise the statement 

of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets 
and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information as set out on pages 39 to 59.

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements
2.  the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with South african Standards of Generally recognised accounting Practice (Sa Standards of GraP) and the 
requirements of the Public Finance Management act, 1999 (act no. 1 of 1999) (PFMa), and for such internal control 
as management determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility
3.  as required by section 188 of the constitution of the republic of South africa, 1996 and section 4 of the Public audit 

act (act no. 25 of 2004) (Paa), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on  
my audit.

4.  I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on auditing and General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in 
Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010.  those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

5.  an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
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Report of the Auditor-General (continued)
FoR the yeAR ended 31 MARch 2011

Opinion
7.  In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Gauteng Film 

commission as at 31 March 2011, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
8.  In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General Notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 33872 of

15 December 2010, I include below my findings on the annual performance report as set out on pages 28 to 59 and 
material non-compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the public entity.

Predetermined objectives
9. there were no material findings on the annual performance report.

Compliance with laws and regulations
10. there were no findings concerning material non-compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the public entity.

INTERNAL CONTROL
11.  In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General Notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 33872 of

15 December 2010, I considered internal control relevant to my audit, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control. there were no significant deficiencies in internal control that resulted in a qualification 
of the auditor’s opinion on the financial statements and/or findings on predetermined objectives and/or material  
non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Johannesburg
29 July 2011
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Statement of financial position
For the year ended 31 March 2011

 Notes   2011 2010
  R R

ASSETS
Non-current assets  5,816,173  859,180
Property, plant and equipment 2 533,342 735,653
Intangible assets 3  71,892 91,108
Investments 4 5,210,939 32,419

Current assets  3,975,581  9,932,247
trade and other receivables – non-exchange 5  414,471  364,267
cash and cash equivalents 6 3,561,110 9,567,980

TOTAL ASSETS  9,791,754 10,791,427

NET FUNDS AND LIABILITIES   

Accumulated surplus  8,000,468 8,171,353

Non-current liabilities   
Long-term finance lease liability 8 63,772 74,055

Current liabilities   1,727,514 2,546,019
trade and other payables 7  1,716,194  2,541,311
current portion of long-term finance liability 8 11,320  4,708

TOTAL FUNDS AND LIABILITIES   9,791,754 10,791,427

GFC AR fins 2011 04Aug.indd   38 2011/08/21   11:30 AM



Annual Report 2011 GAUTENG FILM COMMISSION 39

Statement of financial performance
For the year ended 31 March 2011

 Notes  2011 2010
  R R

Revenue 9 18,050,344 29,986,424
Government grant – non-exchange  17,429,650 28,995,218
Interest income   609,844 978,946
Social funds income  10,850 12,260

Expenditure  (18,221,229) (32,252,025)
cnBc africa partnership 10 – (9,173,437)
employee costs  (10,797,463) (10,461,213)
Industry support and development  (2,416,193) (4,320,050)
Marketing cost  (952,199) (3,780,310)
Legal and governance  (215,134) (658,507)
assets written off  (21) –
office costs  (479,191) (482,385)
training and development costs  (173,430) (150,229)
other operating costs  (608,520) (106,773)
travel – local  (28,798) (133,038)
travel and subsistence-international   (206,455) (561,262)
Information technology  (653,459) (706,757)
depreciation  (306,488) (488,813)
human resources  (73,126) (467,289)
Printing and stationery  (235,631) (274,342)
Professional fees  (715,471) (701,166)
Phase II sector strategy  (359,650) –

Deficit before taxation 11 (170,885)   (2,265,601)
taxation 12 – –

Net deficit for the year 13 (170,885)  (2,265,601)

Attributable to:   
net asset holders   (170,885) (2,265,601)
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Statement of changes in net assets
For the year ended 31 March 2011

 Notes  2011 2010
  R R

Accumulated surplus

Balance at 1 april 2010  8,171,353 10,436,954

net deficit for the year    (170,885) (2,265,601)

Balance at 31 March 2011  8,000,468 8,171,353
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2011

 Notes  2011  2010
  R R

Grants received from grantors   17,479,854  25,647,398
cash paid to suppliers and employees   (18,785,011)  (25,439,842)

Cash utilised from operations 14  (1,305,157) 207,556
Interest received  609,844 978,946
Finance cost  (48,055) (30,563)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operations   (743,368) 1,155,939

Cash outflows from investing activities  (5,263,502) (235,869)
acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (84,982) (235,254)
Investment  (5,178,520)   (615)

net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents for the year   (6,006,870)  920,070
cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  9,567,980 8,647,910

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 3,561,110 9,567,980
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notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2011

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
the annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally recognised 
accounting Practice (GraP), including any interpretations and directives issued by the accounting Standards Board.

Standard of GRAP Replaced Statement of SA GAAP
GraP Framework Framework for the preparation and presentation of 

financial statements
GraP 1: Presentation of financial statements IaS1: Presentation of financial statements
GraP 2: cash flow statements IaS 7: cash flow statements
GraP 3:  accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates 

and errors
IaS 8:  accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates 

and errors
GraP 4: the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates IaS 21: the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
GraP 5: Borrowing costs IaS 23: Borrowing costs
GraP 6: consolidated and separate financial statements IaS 27: consolidated and separate financial statements
GraP 7: Investments in associates IaS 28: Investments in associates
GraP 8: Interests in joint ventures IaS 31: Interest in joint ventures
GraP 9: revenue from exchange transactions IaS 18: revenue
GraP 10:  Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies IaS 29: Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies
GraP 11: construction contracts IaS 11: construction contracts
GraP 12: Inventories IaS 2: Inventories
GraP 13: Leases IaS 17: Leases
GraP 14: events after the reporting date IaS 10: events after the reporting date
GraP 16: Investment property IaS 40: Investment property
GraP 17: Property, plant and equipment IaS 16: Property, plant and equipment
GraP 19:  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent 

assets
IaS 3: Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

GraP 100:  non-current assets held for sale and 
discontinued operations

IFrS 5:  non-current assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations

GraP 101: agriculture IaS 40: Investment property
GraP 102: Intangible assets IaS 38: Intangible assets
directive 1 repeal of existing transitional provisions in, and 

consequential amendments to, standards of GraP
directive 2 transitional provisions for the adoption of standards of 

GraP by public entities.
directive 5 determining the GraP reporting framework
directive 7 the application of deemed cost on the adoption of 

Standards of GraP

currently the recognition and measurement principles in the above GraP and Sa GaaP Statements do not differ or result 
in material differences in items presented and disclosed in the financial statements. the implementation of GraP has resulted 
in the following changes in the presentation of the financial statements:
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terminology differences:

Standard of GRAP Replaced Statement of SA GAAP
Statement of financial performance Income statement
Statement of financial position Balance sheet
Statement of changes in net assets Statement of changes in equity
net assets equity
Surplus/deficit Profit/loss
accumulated surplus/deficit retained earnings
contributions from owners Share capital
distributions to owners dividends

the cash flow statement can only be prepared in accordance with the direct method.

the paragraph 11 – 15 of GraP 1 has not been implemented as GraP 24 has been issued, but it is not effective.  
a comparison note has been included to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements.

New standard and interpretations not yet adopted
at the date of authorisation of financial statements of GFc for the year ended 31 March 2011 the following standard and 
interpretation were in issue but not effective:

GraP 18: Segment reporting – establishes principles for reporting financial information by segments. this standard will not 
have an impact on the financial statements of GFc.

GraP 21: Impairment of non cash generating assets – prescribe the procedures that an entity applies to determine whether 
a non cash generating assets is impaired and to ensure that impairment losses are recognised. the standard also specifies 
when an entity would reverse an impairment loss and prescribed disclosure.

GraP 23: revenue from non-exchange transactions (taxes and transfers) – prescribe requirements for the financial 
reporting of revenue arising from non-exchange transactions, other than non-exchange transaction that give rise to an entity 
combination. the Standard deals with issues that need to be considered in recognising and measuring revenue from non-
exchange transaction, including the identification from owners.

GraP 25: employee Benefit – prescribe the accounting and disclosure for employee benefits. the Standard requires an entity 
to recognise a liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be paid in the future; 
and an expense when the entity consumes the economic benefits or potential services arising from services provided by an 
employee in exchange for employees.

GraP 103: heritage assets – prescribe the accounting treatment for heritage assets and related disclosures requirements. 
this statement will not have an impact on the financial statements of GFc.

Use of estimates and judgment
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with Sa GaaP requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. actual results may differ from these estimates.

estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
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In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes.

Provision

1.2 GOING CONCERN
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and the accounting policies have been applied 
consistently throughout the period.

1.3 REVENUE
In terms of GraP 23, revenue from non-exchange transaction, differentiate between exchange and non-exchange revenues, 
substance rather than form of the transactions should be considered.

exchange transactions are those in which an entity receives assets or services and gives approximately equal value. non 
exchange transactions are not exchange transactions and include revenue from sovereign powers (direct and indirect taxes, 
duties and fines), grants and donations. 

1.4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
In terms of GraP 17, property, plant and equipment are recognised as assets when future economic benefits or potential 
services are probable, and cost as fair value can be measured reliably, criteria apply to all costs when incurred, including initial 
acquisition or construction costs and subsequent costs.

Property, plant and equipment is measured initially at cost or at fair value (when acquired at no, or for nominal cost 
measurement on initial recognition at fair values does not constitute revaluation).

costs include costs initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently 
to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant 
and equipment, the carrying amount to be replaced part is derecognised.

the cost of each assets category includes costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment cost 
incurred subsequently to add, replace part of, or service it.

the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment.

1.5 INVESTMENT
GFc investment is accounted for at fair value at the end of the accounting period.

Cost model
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods and services or administration purposes are 
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. depreciation 
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to write 
off the cost/valuation of each asset over its estimated useful life as follows:

computer hardware 3 years
office machinery and equipment 5 years
Furniture and fittings 5 years
Leasehold improvement 5 years
Printers 3 years
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the assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position date.

Intangible assets

Computer software
acquired computer software are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific 
software. 

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. all other expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance 
as an expense when incurred.

Amortisation
amortisation is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically tested 
for impairment at each reporting date. other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use.  
the estimated useful lives are as follows:

computer software  3 years

1.6 RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS

Provident Fund
GFc operates a defined contribution umbrella fund for all its permanent employees, the assets of which are held in a 
separate trustee administered fund, which is subjected to the Pension act, 1956 as amended. Payments are charged to the 
Statement of Financial Performance in the year to which they relate.

1.7 OPERATING LEASES
In terms of GraP 13, operating lease are leases where payments shall be recognised as an expense in the statement of 
financial performance on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative  
of the time pattern of the users benefit.

1.8 CURRENCY
these financials are presented in South africa rand since that is the currency in which the Board’s transactions are 
denominated.

1.9 FOREIGN CURRENCIES
In terms of GraP 4, a foreign currency transaction shall be recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by 
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency 
at the date of the transaction. the date of a transaction is the date on which the transaction first qualifies for recognition in 
accordance with the Standards of GraP. Foreign assets and liabilities are translated into South african currency at the rate 
ruling at the financial year end.

exchange gains and losses arising from the settlement of monetary items are included in the Statement of Financial 
Performance. the company does not use derivatives financial instruments for speculative polices.
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1.10 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss 
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. the allowance recognised is measured as the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate 
computed at initial recognition.

1.11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest rate method.

1.12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short term high investment that are 
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. these are initially 
and subsequently recorded at fair value.

1.13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1.13.1 Department of Economic Development
Gauteng Film commission is a public entity and reports to the Mec for economic development for Gauteng Provincial 
Government in respect of the development and promotion of the audio-visual industries in Gauteng.

1.13.2 Board of directors
the Board Members are appointed by the Mec for economic development. Board Members fees amount to r100, 000 for 
this financial year (2010: r80, 000). 

1.13.3 Senior Management
the Senior Management are appointed by the chief executive officer; refer to note 11 for senior management remuneration.

Balances
there were no outstanding balances from transactions between the department and GFc as at the 2010/11 Balance Sheet date.

1.13.4 National Film and Video Foundation (NFVF) and Cape Film Commission (CFC)
during the year under review the GFc partnered with the nFVF on the implementation of a number of collaborative 
projects. these projects entailed GFc contributing towards the staging of national exhibitions at the 2009 aFcI Locations 
expo and the 2009 cannes Film Festival, during the previous year. 
  2010
   R

national Film and Video Foundation  164,000

1.13.5 Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of any 
applicable legislation, including:
• the Public Finance Management act or
• any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.
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Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable 
care been exercised. 

all irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against income in the period in which they are incurred.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure must be recovered from a responsible official (a debtor account should be raised) or the 
vote if responsibility cannot be determined. It is treated as a current asset in the statement of financial position until such 
expenditure is recovered from the responsible official or funded from the future voted funds. there was no irregular, fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure for the current financial year.

1.14 MEMBERS OF KEY MANAGEMENT AND PERSONNEL
For the remuneration to directors refer to directors and senior management emoluments note 11.

1.15 PROVISION
In terms of GraP 19, a provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount and is a present obligation (legal/constructive) 
as a result of a past event and estimated reliably. the provision is eliminated from the statement of financial position, through 
use, expenditure for which the provision was recognised originally.

the amount recognised as a provision is the present value of the best estimates of the expenditure required to settle 
the present obligation at balance sheet date. these estimates take into account the associated risks and uncertainties. the 
increase in provisions is due to an increase in outstanding leave days balances at year end which is recognised as expenses.

Provision are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable 
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, the provision is reversed.

1.16 RISK MANAGEMENT
Liquidity risk
the company‘s risk consists mainly as a result of the funds to cover future commitments. the company manages liquidity risk 
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing is monitored.

Credit risk
Receivables
the receivables are exposed to a low risk and no amounts are overdue.

Cash and cash equivalents
cash and deposits are held with aa rated registered banking institution and are regarded as having significant credit risk.

Inherent risk
Receivables
the receivables are exposed to an insignificant amount of interest rate risk.

Cash and cash equivalents
cash in the bank account is kept at a minimum in order to maximise interest earned on any cash.
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2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2011

    Capitalised Leasehold  
 Computer Office Office leased improve-  
 hardware furniture equipment asset ments Total
Summary R R R R R R

Carrying amount at 
beginning of the year 333,703  208,920  58,990  73,667  60,373  735,653
cost at 1 april 2010  728,421 570,275 140,231  85,000 301,857  1,825,784
accumulated depreciation  (394,718) (361,355) (81,241)  (11,333)  (241,484) (1,090,131)
additions 63,330 – 1,500 – –  64,832 
assets written off (6) –  (2) – –  (8) 
depreciation  (125,981) (83,003) (10,963)  (17,000)  (30,186)  (267,133) 

Carrying amount at 
the end of the year 271,048 125,917 49,525  56,667  30,185  533,342
Gross carrying amount 741,329 570,275 134,472  85,000  301,857  1,832,933 
accumulated depreciation (470,281) (444,358) (84,947)  (28,333)   (271,672) (1,299,591)

31 March 2010

    Capitalised Leasehold  
 Computer Office Office leased improve-  
 hardware furniture equipment asset ments Total
Summary R R R R R R

Carrying amount at 
beginning of the year 533,077 255,782 72,495 – 120,744 982,098
cost at 1 april 2009  704,216 507,281 126,662  –  301,857 1,640,016
accumulated depreciation  (171,139) (251,499) (54,167) – (181,113) (657,918)
additions 24,205 62,994 13,569 85,000 – 185,768
depreciation (223,579) (109,856) (27,074) (11,333) (60,371) (432,213)

Carrying amount at 
the end of the year 333,703 208,920 58,990 73,667  60,373 735,653
Gross carrying amount 728,421 570,275 140,231 85,000 301,857  1,825,784
accumulated depreciation (394,718) (361,355) (81,241) (11,333) (241,484) (1,090,131)
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3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

   2011  2010 

  R R

Computer software
Summary
Carrying amount at 
beginning of the year   91,108  98,221
cost at 1 april 2010  210,295 160,809 
accumulated depreciation   (119,187)   (62,588)
additions   20,150   49,486
assets written off     (34,913) – 
depreciation     (4,453)  (56,599)

Carrying amount at 
end of the year   71,892  91,108
Gross carrying amount   195,532  210,295 
accumulated depreciation   (123,640) (119,187) 

4. INVESTMENTS

   2011  2010 

  R R

Bank guarantee   32,419  31,804
Interest capitalised   152  615
Investec   5,000,000  –
Interest capitalised   178,368  –

   5,210,939  32,419

Investments are made in line with GFc approved policy, which is in line with treasury regulations, which outlines how public funds 
should be invested.
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5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES – NON-EXCHANGE

   2011  2010 

  R R

South african revenue Service – Value added tax    376,922  283,485

Prepaid expenses   1,915  3,110

Sundry debtors    35,634  77,672

   414,471 364,267

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and bank balances. cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement 

comprise of the following balance sheet amounts:

   2011  2010 

  R R

cash at bank   3,514,408 9,507,546

cash on hand  3,000 3,000

credit card  43,702 57,434

   3,561,110 9,567,980

7.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

   2011  2010 

  R R

creditors   22,720  22,239

accruals – other  150,000 506,582

accruals – leave  403,124 512,490

Phase 2 – Project Gaullywood    1,140,350  1,500,000

   1,716,194 2,541,311

In terms of the company’s policy, employees are entitled to accumulate a maximum of 30 days on a three year cycle, however it 

should be noted that the ceo has issued a circular which explains that employees should have a balance of 10 days or less at the 

end of december every year.
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8. LONG TERM BEARING BORROWINGS – FINANCE LEASE

the finance lease is secured by machinery (note 2). GFc has leased a photo copy machine from Panasonic. the contract was 

signed in august 2009 and a first instalment was made in october 2009. the lease agreement provides for five annual payments of 

r55,200 annually payable in arrears. the agreement does not provide for contingent rental payments. ownership will remain with 

Panasonic upon the expiration of the lease contract.

Reconciliation between the total minimum lease payments and their present value

  Up to  1 – 5   

  1 year  years  total

2011

Minimum lease payments   55,200  138,000  193,200

Finance cost   (43,880)  (74,228)  (118,107)

Present value   11,320  69,772  75,092

9. REVENUE

revenue arises from the following events and transactions:

   2011  2010 

  R R

Government grant – Main appropriation  17,070,000 16,400,000

                            – cnBc africa  – 12,595,218

                            – Phase 2 – Project Gaullywood  359,650 –

Interest received  609,844 978,946

Social funds income  10,850 12,260

   18,050,344 29,986,424

10. CNBC AFRICA AGREEMENT

during the current financial year under review cnBc africa and GFc have by mutual agreement terminated the cnBc africa 

contract. the letter of termination was signed by both parties, who both agreed that there will be no further claims against each 

other in respect of the contract. 

   2011  2010 

  R R

FINANCIAL SUMMARY  

Revenue

Income received from protected clients   – 201,563

Expenditure

cnBc africa partnership  –  12,595,218
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11. NET DEFICIT BEFORE TAXATION

the net deficit is stated after taking the following items into account:

 Notes  2011  2010 

  R R

Income

Proceeds from insurance claim(1)    – 4,810

Expenditure 

Depreciation  306,488 488,812

computer hardware  125,981 223,579

computer software  39,355 56,599

office equipment  10,963 27,074

Furniture and fittings  83,003 109,856

capitalised finance lease  17,000  11,333

Leasehold improvements  30,186 60,371

Provident fund  1,241,481 1,268,310

repairs and maintenance  948 4,688

assets written off  21 –

Professional fees   752,131 744,085

accounting  108,704 90,690

Audit fee

external auditors  297,520 355,524

Internal auditors   279,247 213,953

Legal cost   36,660 42,919

consultants   30,000 40,999

Note 1.  This relates to proceeds from insurance claims for assets 

repaired during the previous financial year

Operating lease charges  600,770 891,628

equipment  350,776 473,196

Property  249,994  418,432

11.1 Directors’ emoluments  1,794,948 1,642,141

executive directors 11.2  1,694,948 1,562,141

non-executive directors 11.3  100,000   80,000
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11.2 EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

   Leave  Medical Provident 

  Salary pay Bonus aid fund Total

 Year R R R R R R

Mr t tselane  2011  1,244,352 –  175,715 47,685 227,196 1,694,948

Mr t tselane  2010 1,180,060 – 162,699 43,587 175,795 1,562,141

11.3 NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

   2011  2010 

  R R

Mr n Kekana    24,000  12,000

Mr J Marnitz   36,000  24,000

Ms S Bulane-hopa   20,000  24,000

Ms Z nzalo    20,000  20,000

Total   100,000 80,000

11.4 SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

   Leave  Medical Provident 

  Salary pay Bonus aid fund Total

 Year R R R R R R

Mr t Masudubele 2011 725,669  –  70,498 24,049  126,714  946,930

Mr e Maluleke 2011 792,377  –  78,967 43,074 147,590  1,062,008

Mr J Stoltz (1)   2011 239,248      7,091 23,499  9,856  43,740  323,434

Total   1,757,294  7,091 172,964 76,979  318,084  2,332,372

Mr t Masudubele 2010 681,098 – 65,276 18,047 111,939 876,360
Mr e Maluleke 2010 740,750  – 73,118 35,933 139,858  989,659
Mr J Stoltz  2010 664,983   – 65,276  27,579 120,695   878,533

Total  2,086,831 – 203,670 81,559  372,492  2,744,552

(1)	 Resigned	31	July	2010
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12. TAXATION

 GFc is incorporated as a Section 21 association not for gain which has as its main objective to facilitate and promote film 

production in Gauteng Province. GFc has applied for taxation exemption in terms of section 10(1) (Zg) of the Income tax act, 

from the South african revenue Service. GFc is still awaiting a response.

13. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE.

Subsequent to year end the ceo has issued a circular in relation to outstanding leave days balance which explains how GFc will 

account for leave; this will decrease provision for leave at the end of the financial year.

 during the current year under review, the department of economic development (ded) started the process of agency review. 

the recommendation of the report, which was issued on 30 april 2010, was to retain the agency model, restructure the delivery 

model, re-align and integrate the current agencies, focus on creating sustainable employment in Gauteng, enforce corporate 

governance and reinforce agency oversight.

14. RECONCILIATION OF NET PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO CASH GENERATED FROM 

OPERATIONS

 Notes  2011  2010 

  R R

net deficit before taxation   (170,885)  (2,265,601)

Adjusted for items separately disclosed in the face

of the cash flow statement  (561,789) (948,383)

Interest received  (609,844) (978,946)

Finance cost  48,055  30,563

Adjusted for items not involving the flow

of cash and cash equivalents  306,509 488,812

depreciation  306,488 488,812

assets written off  21  – 

Adjusted for changes in working capital  (878,992)  2,932,728

Increase in accounts receivable   (50,204) (3,347,819)

(decrease)/Increase in accounts payable   (828,826) 6,280,547

Cash (utilised)/generated from operations   (1,305,157) 207,556
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15. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT
 Notes  2011  2010 
  R R

not later than one year  593,770 430,207
Later than one year but not later than five years  418,010 148,442

operating lease commitments represent rentals payable for GFc’s premises which expire on 31 october 2011. they also include 
rentals paid for office equipment. operating lease is accounted on the straight-line method.

16. REPORTING AGAINST BUDGET
Reconciliation of budget deficit with the deficit in the statement of financial performance
net deficit per the statement of financial performance     (170,885)

Adjusted for: 
depreciation     306,488
capital expenditure    (84,982)
Interest income    (609,844)
other income    (10,850)

net deficit per approved budget    (570,073)

17. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
during the current financial year an assessment of residual value and remaining useful lives of fixed assets was performed in 
terms of GraP 17, paragraph 61. this has resulted in a decrease in depreciation, which should be accounted for prospectively. the 
change in accounting estimates should be accounted as follows:

    2011 
   R

total depreciation for the current year   481,960
change in accounting estimates   (175,472)

    306,488

18. SOCCER WORLD CUP EXPENDITURE
GFc did not purchase any tickets for the 2010 FIFa Soccer World cup. the only expenditure for the World cup was to purchase 
Bafana Bafana t-shirts for staff, for which the staff contributed 50%.

Purchase of  World Cup apparel
    2011 
   R

Bafana Bafana t-shirts    4,597

total World cup expenditure    4,597
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19. REPORTING AGAINST BUDGET

 2011 2011 2011
 Actual Budget Variance
 R R R

REVENUE
Government grant for the year 17,429,650 18,300,850  871,200
Interest income  609,844  –   (609,844)
Social funds income  10,850  –   (10,850)

Revenue per statement of financial performance 18,050,344 18,300,850  205,506

Total 18,050,344 18,300,850 250,506

EXPENDITURE   
Management of GFC (13,922,328) (14,126,722) 204,394
administrative services (162,091) (165,508) 3,417
auxiliary services (584,412) (571,010) (13,402)
Building and office equipment (479,191) (479,269) 78
development and maintenance of It (528,990) (528,249) 741
human resources (246,556) (240,258)  (6,298)
office security and safety (124,469) (133,000)  8,531
Printing and stationery (235,630) (226,288) (9,342)
Professional fees (715,471) (710,413) (5,058)
employee cost (10,797,463) (11,072,727) 275,264
Finance cost (48,055)  –  (48,055

Legal and governance (215,135) (232,900) 17,765
aFcI (20,620) (20,500) (120)
audit committee fees (35,500) (48,800) 13,300
Bid committee fees (4,000) (4,000)  – 
directors remunerations (92,000) (94,000) 2,000
Legal fees (36,660) (39,000) 2,340
refreshments and meetings  (10,355)  (10,400) 45
remuneration committees fees  (16,000) (16,200) 200

Industry support and development (2,416,192) (2,345,975) (70,217)
content screenings (324,757) (320,000) (4,757)
distribution support        (219,551)  (220,000) 449
Production support (1,859,699) (1,793,975) (65,724)
training and development (12,185)  (12,000) (185)
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notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011

19. REPORTING AGAINST BUDGET (continued)

 2011 2011 2011

 Actual Budget Variance

 R R R

Advocacy and strategy (408,866) (1,550,000) 1,141,134

Phase II Sector strategy  (359,650)  (1,500,000) 1,140,350

ceo corporate entertainment  (49,216)  (50,000) 784

Marketing (952,199) (945,253) (6,946)

advertising media buying (111,755) (106,000) (5,755)

collateral material (39,757)  (41,540) 1,783

Local events and “Made in GP campaign”  (58,908)  (59,040)  132

Media monitoring (44,080) (44,000)  (80)

Media management (48,245) (47,500) (745)

Strategy and research  –   –   – 

Voice on hold (4,281) (4,500) 219

hosting and maintenance of website (386,818) (386,673) (145)

Web and ad hoc content development (258,355) (256,000) (2,355)

Other cost (306,509)  –  (306,509)

depreciation (306,488)  –  (306,509)

assets written off (21)  –  (21)

Total expenditure as per statement of 

financial performance (18,221,229) (19,200,850) 979,621

Adjustment for items not included in 

statement of financial performance

capital expenditure  (84,982) (100,000) 15,018

Total expenditure including capital expenditure (18,306,211) (19,300,850) 994,639
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notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011

20. REPORTING AGAINST BUDGET

 2010 2010 2010
 Actual Budget Variance
 R R R

REVENUE 
Government grant for the year 28,995,218 44,000,000  15,004,782
Interest income  978,946 –  (978,946)
Social funds income  12,260 –  (12,260)

Revenue per statement of 
financial performance 29,986,424 44,000,000 14,013,576

Total 29,986,424 44,000,000 14,013,576

EXPENDITURE   
Management of GFC (13,774,399) (11,010,353) (2,764,046)
administrative services  (146,923) (146,600) (323)
auxiliary services (503,752) (485,260) (18,492)
Building and office equipment (482,385) (473,882) (8,503)
development and maintenance of It (506,325) (526,125) (19,800)
human resources (467,298)  (467,100) (198)
office security and safety (200,432) (193,500) (6,932)
Printing and stationery (274,342) (270,600) (3,742)
Professional fees (701,166) (564,000) (137,166)
employee cost (10,461,213) (7,883,286) (2,577,927)
Finance cost (30,563) – (30,563)

Legal and governance (658,507)  (641,860) (16,647)
aFcI (360,646) (352,000) (8,646)
audit committee fees (12,000)  (12,800) 800
Bid committee fees (4,000) (3,800) (200)
directors remuneration (212,000) (204,000) (8,000)
Legal fees (42,919) (40,000)  (2,919)
Professional fees – advice to the Board – –  –
refreshments and meetings  (22,942)  (20,900) (2,042)
remuneration committee fees (4,000) (8,200) 4,000
training and development – board – (160) 160

Industry support and development (4,320,050) (4,357,692) 37,642
audience development (325,935) (385,000) 59,065
content distribution support (470,914) (504,480) 33,566
Production development support (2,889,551) (2,800,000) (89,551)
training and development – board (633,650) (668,212) 34,562
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notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011

20. REPORTING AGAINST BUDGET (continued)

 2010 2010 2010

 Actual Budget Variance

 R R R

Advocacy and strategy (9,229,947) (24,050,000) 14,820,053

cnBc africa partnership (9,173,437) (22,500,000) 13,326,563

Phase II: Sector strategy – (1,500,000) 1,500,000

entertainment and hosting (56,537) (50,000) (6,537)

Marketing (3,780,310) (3,794,520) 14,210

advertising media buying (668,309) (666,000) (2,309)

collateral material (424,449) (428,336) 3,887

Local events and “ Made in GP campaign” (571,717) (569,918) (1,779)

Media monitoring (3,180) (10,000) 6,820

Strategic branding and marketing (175,941) (176,155) 214

Strategy and research (11,585) (11,845) 260

Voice on hold (5,070) (6,000) 930

hosting and maintenance of website (255,059) (291,000) 35,941

Web and ad hoc content development (310,160) (300,000) (10,160)

Inbound buyer mission and familiarisation (78,188) (54,082) (24,106)

outbound mission to markets and festivals (1,059,253) (1,043,520) (15,733)

Location and permit support (50,189) (70,000) 19,811

Film Indaba (6,665) (6,664) (1)

data collection, analysis and dissemination (160,545) (161,000) 455

Other cost (488,812)  – (488,812)

depreciation (488,812) – (488,812)

Total expenditure as per statement 

of financial performance (32,252,025) (43,854,425) 11,602,400

Adjustment for items not included in 

statement of financial performance   

capital expenditure  (235,254) (145,575) (89,679)

Total expenditure including 

capital expenditure (32,487,279) (44,000,000) 11,512,721
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Supplementary information
For the year ended 31 March 2011

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

  12 months 12 months

  ended  ended

   2011 2010

  R R

REVENUE  18,050,344 29,986,424

Government grant  17,429,650 28,995,215

Interest income  609,844 978,946

Social fund income  10,850 12,260

EXPENDITURE  (18,221,229) 32,252,025

audit committee fees  35,500 12,000

advertising media buying  111,755 668,309

aFcI membership and participation  20,620 360,646

assets written off  21  – 

Bank charges  23,300 27,474

cnBc africa partnership   –  9,173,437

collateral material  39,757 424,449

content screening  324,757 335,935

content distribution support  219,551 470,914

ceo corporate entertainment  49,216 56,537

development and maintenance of It  528,990 543,125

depreciation  306,488 477,479

directors fees  92,000 212,000

employee costs  10,797,463 10,461,213

Film Indaba   –  6,665

Web and ad hoc content development   258,355  310,160

Finance cost  48,055 30,563

hosting and maintenance of website  386,818 225,059

Insurance    113,533 99,294

Legal fees  36,660 42,919

Local events and “Made in GP”  58,908 571,717
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Supplementary information (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

  12 months 12 months

  ended  ended

   2011 2010

  R R

EXPENDITURE (continued)

Media management  48,245  – 

Media monitoring  44,080 3,180

office equipment maintenance  948 4,688

office rent  336,747 320,528

other operating cost  311,974 6,998

organisational development cost  60,304 109,031

outbound mission and festivals  – 1,059,253

Printing and stationery  235,631 274,342

Professional fees  715,471 701,166

Production support  1,859,699 2,889,551

refreshment and entertainment  584,412  503,752

recruitment cost  9,608  202,960

Staff parking  88,360  97,904

Staff development cost  119,193  136,888

Study assistance  54,237  13,341

training and development – ISd  12,185  633,650

travel – local  28,798  133,038

travel and subsistence – international  206,455 561,262

Water and electricity charge  53,135 59,265

Net deficit for the year  (170,885) (2,265,601)

This information is solely for information purposes and does not form part of the annual financial 

statements.
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